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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Carter House, built in 1888, is representative of eclectic late 19th century
architecture in which several styles were often combined in a single building. Here
Queen Anne and Stick style elements are common decoration.

The Carter House, irregular in its floor plan, is two-and-one-half stories on a
raised basement. The three-bayed entrance facade is L-shaped with a two-story gable-
roofed bay extending toward Gresham Street. Exterior siding is drop siding with all
vertical intersections covered by corner boards. Typical windows throughout are one
over one light double hung sash. Panels of leaded g]ass compr1se the upper light of
the center w1ndow within this two-story bay. ‘

First and second floors of the bay are distinguished by a spandrel with Stick/
Queen Anne decoration. The angled part of the bay has spandrels with vertical stick-
work, while the central wall surface is divided into three decorative panels: a center
sunburst flanked by diagonal stickwork. The second storm window of this central wall
is surmounted by a cornice of two rows of six incised panels, each with a rondel. The
surface of the gable is covered with fish scale shingles and a centered casement window
with a pent or shed roof supported by decorative brackets. Decorative Stick/Eastlake
brackets extend from the eave line at intersecting wall surfaces by an incised Stick/
East]ake bargeboard with stickwork in the apex of the gable.

The two bay. recessed portion of the entrance facade includes a balconied porch,
with Queen Anne and Stick/Eastlake decoration. Latticework is used to cover the face
of the porch at the basement level. Porch balusters are Stick or Eastlake in design,
the upper third of each assuming a bracket—11k6'appearance to its intersection with
the porch railing. A stair of six risers meets the porch at the central bay of the
facade and Teads to partially-glazed double-leaf entrance doors.

A pair of Queen Anne posts support the porch roof. The posts are capped brackets and
spindle work, above which are three rows of fish-scale shingles and a railing for the
second story porch. Short turned balusters support a set of pierced panels beneath
the railing. Posts in the Eastlake manner to support the railing are located directly
over their first floor counterparts.

The ground floor of the recessed portion consists of two bays: a pair of one over
one double hung sash and a pair of entrance doors. Each door is divided into two panels
separated by a spandrel rail, the lower panel in wood, the upper in glass. The whole is
surmounted by a transom light. '

The second floor includes a one-over-one double hung sash and a door leading onto
the balcony of the porch. Within the roof is a small Queen Anne eyebrow dormer window.

Within is an entrance hall with a stair to the second story and with a passage back
to the kitchen, and with doors leading right and left to the 1iving room (or parlor) and
to the study (or possibly a downstairs bedroom). The dining room is located between the
living room and kitchen, separated from the 1iving room by generous paneled oak sliding
doors. Also from the dining room a wide doorway opens into a sitting room with fireplace
and an outside door to a side porch. There is one main floor bathroom which originally
may have been part of the study. Upstairs, there are bedrooms (four), one of which has
a superb blue-tile fireplace. A steep stairleads to a high-ceilinged attic.
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Interior decoration is limited to the entrance hall with richly carved newel
posts and ballusters on the stairs; to the living room with an ornate fireplace,
leaded glass door opening to the side porch, stained glass panels in the front bay
window, and oak paneled sliding doors closing off the dining room; and to the
dining room with paneled doors on a kitchen pass-through cupboard. A subsequent
owner added a magnificent oak sideboard with upward-sliding glass doors and richly
carved trim.

There is no basement. Heating apparently was by the three fireplaces and

individual stoves in the main rooms. The present owners have installed a gas-fired
air system.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Carter House ‘is arcﬁiteéturally §ighifiéaﬁtvas,anﬂécléctic;reﬁderiﬁg‘of several
late-1800 Victorian vocabularies and as the home of H.B. Carter, a prominent Ashland,
Oregon resident. e : : .

H.B. Carter and his wife, both of New England ancestry, moved to Ashland in 1884
and built the Carter House in 1888 at a cost of $4,000. Carter was one of the most
prominent men in town. He founded the bank, planted orchards, and was a prime mover in
establishing the Ashland Electric Light and Power Company. The Carters (and the Galeys
who married into the family) gave the city a boulevard (now known as Siskiyou Boulevard)
100 feet wide running through their land holdings and simply stopping in the country.
Mrs. Carter was prominent in church, civic and temperance work. A memorial fountain
dedicated to the Carters was erected in the City Plaza in 1910. Carter died in 1896
and Mrs. Carter died in 1902.

Architecturally, the Carter House displays the elegance of late-1800 Victorian
houses, yet it is in many ways simple--reflecting the 1ifestyles of Oregonians of that
period. Detailing on the eaves, bays, and porches is elegant with sunbursts, incised
panels with rondels, and intricate Eastlake brackets, balusters, posts and railings.
The treatment of the exterior walls and eaves other than the bays, however, is quite
simple. There is plain horizontal drop siding, and the eaves are unadorned.

The interior shows the same elegant simplicity. The hallway, 1iving room and
dining room are adorned with rich woodwork, leaded glass windows and an ornate fire-
place in the Tliving room. One of the four bedrooms is quite attractive with a blue-
tile fireplace, but the remaining bedrooms are quite simple.

The present owners have shown a great deal of care and restraint in restoring the
Carter House. The interior woodwork has been carefully preserved and the exterior
colors, although not original, blend in nicely with the surrounding vegetation and
are characteristic of the area.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Lot 1, Block 46 of Summit Addition to the Plat of Ashland . Excepting there-
from the following: Beginning at the southeast corner of said Lot 1; thence
North along the east line of said Lot, a distance of 50 feet; thence West

100 feet; then South 50 feet to the south line of said Lot; thence East along
said south line 100 feet to the point of the beginning.
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